
From: Tristan Standen (Northern Sydney LHD)
Sent: 11/10/2024 1:33:08 PM
To: Council Northernbeaches Mailbox
Cc: NSLHD-AlcoholTobaccoTeam

Subject: TRIMMED: DA2024/1091 - Northern Sydney Local Health District
Development Application Response

Attachments: NSLHD DA Submission- DA2024 1091.pdf;

Good A�ernoon,

I am wri�ng today on regarding development applica�on no.: DA2024/1091

A�ached is a submission from Northern Sydney Local Health District regarding this applica�on. Can it please be
forwarded to relevant council officer for their review.

Any issues please do not hesitate to reach out.

Kind Regards,

Tristan Standen
Health Promotion Officer
Population Health Promotion
Northern Sydney Local Health District
T (02) 8797 7636 E 

612-624 Pittwater Road
Brookvale, NSW 2100

I acknowledge the traditional custodians of the land and pay respects to Elders past and present. I also acknowledge all the
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander staff working with NSW Government at this time.

Please consider the environment before printing this email.

This email is intended for the addressee named and may contain confidential information. If you are not the
intended recipient, you must not disclose, copy or distribute this email. If you have received this email in error,
please notify the sender immediately, delete it from your system and destroy any copies.



Views expressed in this message are those of the individual sender, and are not necessarily the views of NSW
Health or any of its entities.



Northern Sydney Local Health District  
 

Northern Sydney Local Health District is located on the traditional lands of the Eora Nation 

 
Population Health Promotion (02) 9388 5299 
Brookvale Community Health Centre NSLHD-HealthPromotion@health.nsw.gov.au  
Level 4, 612-624 Pittwater Road www.nslhd.health.nsw.gov.au/HealthPromotion  
Brookvale NSW 2100 ABN 63 834 171 987 1 

 
 

Northern Beaches Council 
PO Box 82  
Manly NSW 1655 
 
NSLHD Consultation Submission for Development Application (DA2024/1091) 
 

11 October 2024 

 

Dear Northern Beaches Council, 

 

Northern Sydney Local Health District (NSLHD) has an active interest in measures to prevent or 

reduce alcohol-related harm such as malicious damage, interpersonal violence, accidental injury and 

long-term health impacts.  

 

We do not support the Development Application (Application Number: DA2024/1091) for Careel 

Head Road, Avalon Beach which proposes the construction of a mixed-use development. This 

includes a large retail store (approximately 500m2) which would house a Dan Murphys and an early 

childhood education centre. NSLHD has concerns about the health and social impacts this 

development would have on the local community. Our concerns are expressed below: 

 

Alcohol-related health harms 

Avalon Beach is a suburb within the Northern Beaches Local Government Area (LGA) and is serviced 

by the Northern Beaches Hospital for emergency admissions. Northern Beaches LGA has a 

significantly higher rate of alcohol attributable hospitalisations compared to the rest of the state at 

a spatially adjusted rate of 872 per 100,000 compared to NSW at 528 per 100,000i. This is 65% 

higher than the NSW rate. Furthermore, the most recent Northern Beaches Hospital Emergency 

Department data released in 2022 shows thatii: 

o Unplanned alcohol visits per 1,000 to ED were 47% higher than the rest of NSW. 

o The rate of late-night unplanned alcohol visits per 1,000 to ED was 36% higher than 

the rest of NSW. 
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Proximity to an early childhood education centre   

• The architectural plans depict the Dan Murphy’s on the ground floor and the childcare centre 

directly above on level 1. Guideline 6 of the Liquor Act 2007 “Consideration of social impact 

under section 48(5) of the Liquor Act 2007” outlines that ‘location’ must be considered in 

regard to the ‘impact upon community well-being, specifically proximity of proposed licensed 

premises to ‘schools, universities, TAFE colleges or other educational facilities’iii. 

• Education settings provide an important civic place for communities and often operate as 

social hubs for parents, children and the broader communityiv.  

• Consideration needs to be given to the ‘State Environmental Planning Policy (Educational 

Establishments and Child Care Facilities) 2017, Schedule 4, Principal 4 – health and safety 

which states: ‘good school development optimises health, safety and security within its 

boundaries and the surrounding public domain, and balances this with the need to create a 

welcoming and accessible environment’v. 

• A well-planned built environment should be healthy for all members of the community and 

includes the promotion of social cohesion, community safety and wellbeingvi. 

• The proposed DA would increase young children’s exposure to alcohol and alcohol marketing 

on a regular basis. The relationship between exposure to alcohol marketing and increased 

youth drinking is evidentvii,viii. A recent study found that schools with alcohol retailers within a 

500 metre radius on average experience 30 times more alcohol related advertising than 

those without an alcohol retailer in the same areaix.  

•  

Density 

The current September 2024 Liquor and Gaming NSW Licenced Premises data reveals that there 

are currently 4 existing packaged liquor licences in the Avalon area and another currently under 

consideration (Winona Wines) by Liquor and Gaming NSW (see table 1 below). If the Winona Wines 

licence application is approved, this will increase the density of PLLs in the Avalon Beach area to 5. 

There is evidence that the availability of alcohol products and the density of outlets that sell alcohol 

are linked to alcohol-related harms, as summarised in a recent systematic reviewx.  

Store Address 

Clareville Cellars Fine Wine 

& Beer 

Shop 6 - Shop 7 25 Hudson Parade, Avalon Beach NSW  

Chambers Cellars Shop 1 Old Barrenjoey Road & Avalon Parade, Avalon Beach NSW  

North Avalon Cellars Shop 3 North Avalon Road, Avalon Beach NSW  

Vintage Cellars 17-19 Old Barrenjoey Road, Avalon Beach NSW 

Winona Wines** Shop 1, 25 Old Barrenjoey Road, Avalon Beach, NSW 

Table 1: Packaged liquor licences in Avalon area. 

** Not open but is liquor licence application currently under review with the Independent Liquor and Gaming 
Authority (see application number APP-0013332181). 
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Domestic Assault  

An Evidence Check conducted by Livingston, Wilkinson and Room identifies a strong association 

between the volume of sales from packaged liquor outlets and increased rates of violence in a given 

areaxv. It is reasonable to assume that the applicant (Dan Murphy’s) would aim to increase the 

volume of alcohol sold from the 500m2 proposed premises to offset the operational costs compared 

to other smaller PLLs in the Avalon area.  

 

We strongly encourage Council to prioritise the above points relating to community health, 

wellbeing and safety  as part of the decision-making process. To prevent the undesirable effects 

and impacts associated with the approval of this Development Application, NSLHD Population 

Health Promotion: 

• Does not support the granting of this application by the Northern Beach Council. 

 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact Tristan Standen, NSLHD Health 
Promotion on (02) 8797 7636 or nslhd-alcoholtobaccoteam@health.nsw.gov.au  
 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Paul Klarenaar 
Director l NSLHD l Population & Planetary Health 
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